
   
Municipal Buildings 
Boston 
Lincolnshire   PE21 8QR 
Tel: 01205 314200 
Fax: 01205 364604 

 

 
 
 

 

12 May 2021 
 
TO MEMBERS OF THE BOSTON TOWN AREA COMMITTEE (BTAC) 
 

 
NOTICE OF MEETING OF THE BOSTON TOWN AREA COMMITTEE (BTAC) 

 
Dear Councillor 
 

You are invited to attend a meeting of the Boston Town Area Committee (BTAC) on 
Thursday, 20th May, 2021 at 6.30 pm 

in the Guildhall, South Street, Boston PE21 6HT 

 
ROB BARLOW 
Joint Chief Executive 
 
Membership: 
  

Chairman: Councillor Paul Goodale 
Vice Chairman: Councillor Stephen Woodliffe 
 Councillors Alison Austin, Alan Bell, Katie Chalmers, Anton Dani, 

Anne Dorrian, Viven Edge, Deborah Evans, Martin Griggs, 
Neill Hastie, Martin Howard MSc. PCGM, Cert Ed, Brian Rush and 
Yvonne Stevens 
 

 
 

A G E N D A 
 
PART I - PRELIMINARIES 
 

A   APOLOGIES  
 

 To receive apologies for absence. 
 

B   MINUTES (Pages 1 - 4) 
 

 To sign and confirm the minutes of the last meeting, held on 24th March 2021. 
 
 

Public Document Pack



 

C   UPDATE ON ACTIONS FROM THE MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING  
 

 To report progress on outstanding actions from the minutes of the last meeting, for 
information only. 
 

D   DECLARATION OF INTERESTS  
 

 To receive declarations of interests in respect of any item on the agenda. 
 

E   PUBLIC QUESTIONS  
 

 To answer any written questions received from members of the public no later than 
5 p.m. two clear working days prior to the meeting – for this meeting the deadline 
is 5 p.m. on Monday 17th May 2021. 
 

F   PUBLIC SPEAKING TIME  
 

 To allow members of the public to address the Committee. 
 

 
PART II - AGENDA ITEMS 
 

1   BTAC SMALL GRANT SCHEME (Pages 5 - 16) 
 

 (A report by Maddy Eyre, Local Communities Development Officer & BTAC Grant 
Administrator) 
 
Representatives from Boston Big Local will attend to present their request for 
BTAC’s support. 
 

2   EMPOWERING HEALTHY COMMUNITIES (MHCLG COMMUNITY CHAMPIONS 
PROGRAMME) (Pages 17 - 42) 
 

 (A report by Michelle Howard, Assistant Director – Housing and Wellbeing and 
Nichola Holderness, Empowering Healthy Communities Programme Coordinator) 
 

3   REGULATING AND SAFEGUARDING BOSTON'S ECONOMY TASK AND 
FINISH GROUP RECOMMENDATIONS IN RELATION TO CENTRAL PARK 
SECURITY (Pages 43 - 56) 
 

 (A report by Christian Allen, Assistant Director – Regulation) 

Peter Hunn, Community Safety Manager, Matt Fisher, Operations Manager, and 

Boston Police Inspector Fran Harrod will also be in attendance at this meeting to 

answer questions. 

4   WORK PROGRAMME - STANDING ITEM (Pages 57 - 60) 
 

 (The Committee’s work programme for the current year for discussion and/or 
updating.  A financial position statement is appended for reference.) 
 

 



 
 
 
 
Notes: 
 

The person to contact about the agenda and documents for this meeting is Janette Collier, 
Senior Democratic Services Officer, Municipal Buildings, Boston, 01205 314227  email: 
janette.collier@boston.gov.uk  
 

Council Members who are not able to attend the meeting should notify Janette Collier, 
Senior Democratic Services Officer as soon as possible. 
 

Alternative Versions 
Should you wish to have the agenda or report in an alternative format such as larger text, 
Braille or a specific language, please contact Democratic Services on direct dial (01205) 
314226 
 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



BOSTON TOWN AREA COMMITTEE (BTAC) 
 

24 March 2021 

Present: Councillor Paul Goodale (Chairman), Councillor Stephen Woodliffe (Vice-
Chairman), Councillors Alison Austin, Alan Bell, Anton Dani, Deborah Evans, 
Martin Griggs, Neill Hastie, Brian Rush and Yvonne Stevens 
 
Officers –  
Assistant Director - Support Services & Partnership, Town Centre Services Manager, 
Senior Democratic Services Officer and Democratic Services Apprentice 
 
Guests: 
Ben Shaw and Matthew Van Lier, Haven High Academy 
 
104   APOLOGIES 

 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Anne Dorrian, Viven Edge and 
Martin Howard.   
 
105   MINUTES 

 
The minutes of the meeting held on 3rd February 2021 were agreed and would be signed 
by the Chairman. 
 
106   UPDATE ON ACTIONS FROM THE MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING 

 
The Assistant Director - Support Services & Partnerships reported that the CCTV 
camera at the Woodville Road open space had been switched on that day. 
 
107   DECLARATION OF INTERESTS 

 
None. 
 
108   PUBLIC QUESTIONS 

 
None. 
 
109   APPLICATION FOR SCHOOL STREET - MARION ROAD 

 
Two representatives from Haven High Academy were invited to present their case for 
applying to Lincolnshire County Council to have Marian Road, Boston designated as a 
“School Street”.   
 
If the application was successful, a temporary restriction on motorised traffic would apply 
to the road at school drop-off and pick-up times. The restriction applied to school traffic 
and through traffic (not residents or emergency vehicles) and the result would be a 
safer, healthier and more pleasant environment for everyone. 
 
Following the presentation, Members put forward a range of views on the matter. The 
majority of Members felt strongly that the designation would make the street much safer 
for the schoolchildren attending the academy.  In addition, they felt that the wellbeing of 
pupils would improve due to the extra exercise that they would have if parents were not 

Page 1

Agenda Item B



Boston Town Area Committee (BTAC) 
24 March 2021 
 

dropping them off and picking them up by car, which would help tackle obesity and 
increase alertness and learning capacity.   
 
Furthermore, it would assist traffic travelling to and from the crematorium and improve 
access for emergency vehicles.  Members commended the input of the children from the 
academy.   
 
One spoke in favour of the scheme, but suggested it would be more appropriate for 
Sherriff Way outside Park Primary School to be designated as a school street, as 
secondary schoolchildren should have more road sense.  Another suggestion was to 
introduce the designation as a pilot scheme. 
 
A minority of Members were not in favour of the application, believing it could make the 
area less safe for children, as they would have to walk further, perhaps alone, or cycle 
on the busy main road, and be more vulnerable to bullying.  It might simply move 
problems to another area, possibly turning Sherwood Avenue into a ‘rat run’.   
 
One Member spoke about the difficulties the “school run” presented for parents, 
particularly those who worked, had children at more than one school, lived at a distance, 
or had children with disabilities or disabilities of their own, and felt strongly that parents 
should be consulted as part of the process.  It was also suggested that, as all schools 
had this problem, “Park and Stride” schemes should be considered whereby specified 
car parks were used as drops off zones, which were successful elsewhere, or for there 
to be a return of school buses.  .   
 
On conclusion of debate, it was agreed that the Chairman would write to the County 
Council to convey the Committee’s strong support for the application to designate 
Marian Road, Boston as a “School Street”, with the letter to reflect all Members’ views 
expressed at the meeting. 
 

Action: Chairman/Clerk 
Draft a letter to Lincolnshire County Council as agreed. 

 
110   REVIEW OF 2021/22 EVENTS DUE TO COVID-19 

 
The Town Centre Services Manager presented a report, which provided an update and 
recommendations on the 2021 events programme and proposals for a new Summer 
programme. 
 
The report sought the Committee’s support for the proposed Option 1 event plan, as set 
out in Appendix B for the 2021 events calendar.  However, if the Committee chose not to 
support this, then Members were asked to adopt Option 2, as set out in Appendix C. 
 
Option 1 aimed to keep all the free community events, which people had enjoyed 
previously, but added some new events that should encourage footfall and benefit the 
recovery of the town.  A major cost for the budget was the return of the Christmas 
Market and Lights Switch On event (not including the provision of lights) within the 
budget.  Officers had included the expansion of that event into a 4-day Christmas 
Market on Bargate Green car park.   
 

Page 2



Boston Town Area Committee (BTAC) 
24 March 2021 

 

Option 1 would cost an additional £6,500 for the financial year and a breakdown of this 
programme in the appendix.  The annual baseline budget for events was £41,500. 
 
Option 2 focused on a limited programme of events, but still featured the major attraction 
of the Christmas Market & Lights Switch On event (not including the provision of lights) 
within the budget, including the expansion into a 4-day Christmas Market.   
 
The proposal was to deliver Option 2 within the annual baseline budget for events in 
2021/22 of £41,500. 
 

During debate, some Members did not support allowing an additional £6,500 
expenditure for events.  One view was that the budget had not been identified to cover 
it.  Another was that, because it was not known what would happen in terms of the 
pandemic, they might have to cancel events and, therefore, it would be better to keep 
them to a minimum.   
 
A Member spoke in support of the additional expenditure due to the need for local 
events now being greater than ever.  People had endured months of restrictions and it 
had affected them financially.  They needed something to look forward to, especially 
children, and it would help to improve their wellbeing significantly.   
 
Others agreed, though there was concern that events in themselves could increase 
transmission of the virus.   
 
The Town Centre Services Manager confirmed that all events arranged from March 
2020 onwards had been booked on the proviso that they might be postponed due to 
Covid19 restrictions. Boston Big Local had supported all events so far, but had decided 
against funding larger events due to the pandemic.  Another approach would be made 
later in the year, if the situation improved.  Arrangements for events were under constant 
review in order to make improvements.  Social-distancing measures were in place and 
capacity reduced accordingly, for example, the outdoor cinema events would cater for 
200 rather than 499 as previously.   
 

Action: KW 
Advise Members of the legal situation with respect to charging for an event held in 
Central Park, with it being a public facility. 

 
A Member commended the work of the Town Centre Services Manager.   
 

RESOLVED: That Option 1 be approved, the proposed Event plan for the 2021 
events calendar as set out in Appendix B. 

 
111   CHRISTMAS IN BOSTON - COMMUNITY CHRISTMAS LIGHTS 

 
The Town Centre Services Manager presented a report, written in response to a letter 
from Christmas In Boston, the community-based group of people formed in 2017, which 
requested financial support to enable the group to install the Christmas lights in Boston.   
 
Christmas In Boston benefited the whole community of Boston, brightened the streets 
and consistently worked together for the people of Boston. It was recommended that the 

Page 3



Boston Town Area Committee (BTAC) 
24 March 2021 
 

Committee consider agreeing to support Christmas in Boston with a £5,000 grant for the 
next three years (2021/2022, 2022/23 & 2023/24) to continue their efforts with the 
Christmas lights for Boston. 
 
Members commended Christmas In Boston and applauded the tremendous work the 
volunteers undertook.  It was felt the Committee should give support for the lights, when 
so many businesses had been closed and the town had suffered from the lockdown 
restrictions.   
 
One Member suggested that the Committee only agree to give support for the current 
year and then review the situation after that, as the group was meant to become self-
sufficient and might not need the support during the following years.  The money could 
then be used to fund other things for the benefit of the town’s residents.  However, 
others considered that giving support for three years would enable the group to plan 
ahead and give residents confidence that the lights would be provided. 
 

RESOLVED: That Christmas in Boston be supported with a £5,000 grant for the 
next three years – 2021/2022, 2022/23 and 2023/24 – to continue their efforts with 
the Christmas Lighting for Boston. 

 
112   WORK PROGRAMME - STANDING ITEM 

 
Members noted that the Committee would meet on Thursday evenings in future, to avoid 
diary conflicts with other meetings.  
 
The Committee agreed to refer the suggestion of a time-limited amnesty on the 
collection of bulky items to Cabinet, which Councillor Yvonne Stevens agreed to take 
forward, and to add it to the Committee’s work programme in August to check progress.   
 
Members commended the tremendous efforts of members of the public and staff to keep 
the town clean.   
 
The Chairman advised the Committee that a report on the proposal to consider a 
Community Governance Review (CGR) to progress the Committee’s aim to become a 
Town Council would be submitted to Full Council in July. 
 
Therefore, the Committee agreed to add the following items to its work programme for 
5th August 2021: 
 

 Setting up a Town Council following Council’s consideration of a CGR 

 Amnesty on bulky waste collection to check progress of Cabinet’s consideration 
 

Action: JC 
Advise relevant officers of reports requested. 

 
 
 
 

The Meeting ended at 8.50 pm 
 

Page 4



 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

REPORT TO: BOSTON TOWN AREA COMMITTEE 

DATE: 20TH MAY 2021 

SUBJECT: BTAC SMALL GRANT SCHEME 

REPORT AUTHOR: MADDY EYRE, LOCAL COMMUNITIES DEVELOPMENT OFFICER AND 

BTAC GRANT ADMINISTRATOR 

EXEMPT REPORT? NO 

 

SUMMARY 

In accordance with the Committee’s Small Grant Scheme, this report presents the applications 

made to the Small Grants Working Group in Round 1 of the financial year 2021/2022, considers 

additional business, with regard to a request from Boston Big Local to consider a financial 

investment greater than the small grant allows and provides latest information on grant 

applications put on hold from Round 3 19/20. 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

1. That the Committee endorse the recommendations made by the Working Group in respect 
of eligible applications. 

2. That the Committee note latest information on grants put on hold from Round 3 19/20. 
3. That the Committee considers Boston Big Local’s request for investment. 

 

 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

The Committee’s policy is to consider each eligible application in light of the recommendations 

made by the Small Grant Working Group.  

That the committee is made aware of the current position with regard to grants put on hold 

from Round 3 19/20 

The Small Grant Working Group cannot make decisions on awards sought, greater than the 

maximum £1,000 which the Small Grant Scheme allows. 

 

Page 5

Agenda Item 1



 

 

OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

None. 

 

REPORT 

1.1  13 applications were received in Round 1 of the Boston Town Area Committee Small Grant 

Scheme; of the 13, all were eligible for consideration.  Details of applicants are set out in 

Table 1 below.  Working Group recommendations to be circulated at full committee as 

Table 2. Applicants were notified that whilst covid-19 recovery would not be an additional 

theme applied to the scheme, consideration would be given to groups looking for 

assistance in this area and should therefore make reference to this in their applications. 

TABLE 1 

Applicant Project Amount 

requested 

Headway Lincolnshire As part of their covid-19 recovery, Headway Lincolnshire 

are looking for funding to support revenue costs 

associated with supporting their beneficiaries as they 

have been unable to fundraise during 2020. 

£1,000 

contribution 

towards the cost 

of premises 

rental for 6 

months 

Rhubarb Theatre To develop an arts based resource pack about the 

environment which will be tailored to the priorities of the 

council relating to the environment, climate change, 

recycling etc and delivered to all schools in the BTAC 

area. 

£1,000 

contribution 

towards a larger 

project – other 

funds secured 

Boston Borough 

Council- GMLC  

To expand their current swimming programme and 

develop the ‘Geoff Moulder Swimming Academy’ this will 

enable them to purchase new signage, promote the 

scheme, produce translated information packs and 

purchase new technology to aid planning and recording 

lessons and tracking progress. 

£1,000 

contribution 

towards larger 

project – match 

funding secured 

Friends of Fydell 

House 

To fund the purchase of patio tables and chairs for the 

gardens to increase their visitor offer. 

£1,000 

Boston in Bloom 

Partnership 

Contribution to the cost of commissioning a film by 

Electric Egg to enable their entry into both the regional 

and national Bloom competitions in 2021 

£1,000 

Contribution 

towards larger 

project – other 

funding secured 

Parish of Boston – 

Boston Foodbank 

To purchase storage equipment for the food bank 

currently housed at Blenkin Memorial Hall 

£680.00 

Full project costs 

Page 6



 

 

Singing for Fun To contribute towards the costs of running the group – 

admin costs, equipment costs to ensure they are able to 

continue during the pandemic 

£1,000 

contribution, 

other funds 

applied for. 

Kuk Sool Won To contribute towards the cost of renting their unit to 

ensure continued viability when lockdown restrictions are 

lifted. 

£1,000 

contribution 

towards costs 

Boston Parkrun  Contribution to set up costs to run Junior Park Run 

Scheme in Central Park 

£1,000 

contribution to 

larger project 

costs 

St John’s Ambulance Contribute towards the cost of training 9 new young 

volunteers to their cadet programme in the Fenside Ward 

of Boston 

£1,000 

contribution to 

larger project 

costs for which 

they intend to 

continue to 

fundraise when 

restrictions allow. 

We’ll Meet Again 

Museum 

Contribute towards the cost of delivering their fully 

immersive education programmes to schools within the 

BTAC area. 

£1,000 

contribution to 

costs. 

Skirbeck St Nicholas 

Community Centre 

Contribute towards the cost of further refurbishments to 

the centre; Ladies toilet and provision of a wet room 

£1,000 

contribution to 

costs.  Applied to 

Co-Op 

Community 

Champions Fund 

which is currently 

closed due to 

pandemic.  Will 

contribute some 

of their own 

funds to project 

The Local Community 

Centre 

Purchase and install new hot water system to this new 

and developing centre 

£1,000 full 

project costs. 

 

1.2   There were 2 applicants from Round 3 19/20, Centrepoint Outreach and Lincoln Diocesan 

Board of Education, that chose Option 2 – “To put their application on hold until such time 

as they were able to deliver their projects.” – this was on the basis that the funds allocated 

to these projects were ring-fenced. The combined total for these applications was 

Page 7



 

 

£1,754.00.  Both applications have now been withdrawn from the programme consequently 

the allocated funds will now be put back into the community grant pot. 

1.3  The Chairman has received correspondence from Boston Big Local asking for an investment 

from BTAC towards production of a Boston Monopoly Board – See Appendix 1 of this 

report. Representatives from Boston Big Local will give a brief presentation for committee 

members. 

1.3.1 The Small Grants Working Group are not able to make decisions on funds requested that 

are greater than the small grants programme allows and any investment would not 

necessarily come from the small grants budget. 

CONCLUSION 
 
In conclusion, the Working Group recommendations are to be circulated at full Committee for 
consideration, in line with the Committee’s policy which is to consider each eligible application in 
light of the Small Grant Working Group’s recommendations.  The Committee are asked to note, for 
information only, the current position regarding withdrawn applications from Round 3 19/20 and 
following a presentation from representatives of Boston Big Local, consider their proposal for 
investment. 
 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
The value of each grant sought is set out in Table 1.  The Committee’s current Small Grant 

financial position is set out on the finance pro-forma that accompanies this report.  

The funds ring-fenced for Centrepoint Outreach and Lincoln Diocesan Board of Education will be 

put back into the general small grant pot for future rounds. 

The value of the investment requested can be seen in Appendix 1 of this report and can be 

allocated from other BTAC funds as per finance pro-forma accompanying this report. 

 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

This work relates directly to the Local Government Act 2000 and to the Duty of Well-being 

placed upon the Council to promote and improve the well-being of the District.  

 

CLIMATE CHANGE AND ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS 

There are no climate change and environmental implications directly arising from this report. 

 

EQUALITY AND SAFEGUARDING IMPLICATIONS 

Priorities supported will promote fairness and inclusion while supporting Boston Town Area 

Committee’s commitment to equal opportunities for all, including those protected 

characteristics identified within the Equalities Act 2010 

There are no equalities implications within this report.  All equalities implications will be 

Page 8



 

 

managed alongside each individual applicant through the monitoring process of project delivery. 

There are no safeguarding implications directly arising from this report. 

 

OTHER IMPLICATIONS  

None. 

 

CONSULTATION 

Applications have been reviewed by the Small Grant Working Group with their comments set out 

within Table 2 to be circulated at full committee. 

 

APPENDICES 

Appendices are listed below and attached to the back of the report: - 

APPENDIX 1 Letter to the Chairman from Boston Big Local dated 4 February 2021 

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

Background papers used in the production of this report are listed below: - 

Document title Where the document can be viewed 

Grant Applications Application summaries are available to BTAC Members on request from 

the Small Grant Scheme Administrator. 

 

CHRONOLOGICAL HISTORY OF THIS REPORT 

Name of body Date 

BTAC Small Grants Scheme Working 

Group 

25th February 2021. 

 

REPORT APPROVAL  

Report author: Maddy Eyre, Local Communities Development Officer and 
Administrator of the Boston Town Area Committee Small Grant 
Scheme  maddy.eyre@boston.gov.uk  

Signed off by: Christian Allen  Christian.allen@boston.gov.uk  

Approved for 

publication: 

Chairman of BTAC 

Page 9

mailto:maddy.eyre@boston.gov.uk
mailto:Christian.allen@boston.gov.uk


 

 

FINANCE PROFORMA 

BOSTON BOROUGH COUNCIL 

PROFORMA FOR EXECUTIVE APPROVAL OF THE RELEASE OF RESOURCES 

(CAPITAL AND REVENUE BUDGETS) 

FROM:  Rachel Chatterton  

THIS PROFORMA PROVIDES THE FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
IN RESPECT OF THE ATTACHED 

     
REPORT:  Boston Town Area Committee 
REPORT DATE: May 2021 
 
OPTION 1 £ Year 1 £ Year 2 £ Year 3 £ Year 4 £ Year 5 
 2021.22 2022.23 2023.24 2024.25 2025/26 
Revenue      
 

Small Grants  

 
12,680 

 
 
 

    

      
      

Total Revenue Cost 12,680     

 
Funding required:   Considered by:  

BTAC  
Date: May 
2021 

Total capital cost 
 

£0    

Revenue cost 
 

£12,680  Enter Council or 
Cabinet here 

 

 
Financial Services Comments 
The committee has £19,448 available for the small grants scheme in 2021.22 following the rolling 
over of previous year’s funds. If all grants are approved the committee will have remaining funds of 
£6,768 for future applications.  
 
Risk 
 
None 
 
Procurement 
 
Value for Money Efficiency 
 

This FP is valid for 3 months from 

FP date 

If this FP is no longer required please 

advise Finance 

If there are changes to the original report it 

may invalidate this document, it must be 

reviewed by Finance. 

Page 10



 

 

 

APPENDIX 1 

 

Boston Big Local  
c/o Age UK Lincoln and South Lincolnshire  

Chantry House, 3 Lincoln Lane  
Boston  

PE21 8RU  
 

Email:     
 

 

 Date 4th February 2021 
 
Dear Cllr Goodale,  
 
I am writing to you as Chairman of the Boston Big Local Residents Partnership Group to see if 
the Boston Town Area Committee would be interested in giving their support in the production 
of an official Boston Monopoly board game.  
 
Boston Big Local (BBL)  
 
As you may be aware, Boston Big Local (BBL) is one of 150 areas that have been awarded 
£1million by the National Lottery Community Fund to be spent over a ten-year period in order 
to make a positive and lasting difference in the local area and bring long-lasting change to the 
lives of those people living and working there. The Boston Big Local area (Appendix 1) covers 
the entire BTAC Station ward and touches upon the Skirbeck, Station and Trinity wards.  
The project is being steered by a local Resident Partnership Group and is supported through 
Age UK Lincoln & South Lincolnshire, which is acting as the Local Trusted Organisation (LTO) 
for the project and manages the partnership’s funding.  
Now in its sixth year, Boston Big Local has supported and helped match-fund a number of 
projects within the BTAC area. These include the funding of additional play equipment in 
Central Park and Woodville Road as well as the development of Boston in Bloom projects, 
such as the Art Deco garden in Central Park and the ongoing Buoys Project, across the town. 
BBL has also provided funding for a variety of events that take place in the BTAC area, 
including the yearly Boston Beach Days, Active Boston, Get Cycling Roadshow and the 1940’s 
weekend. Likewise, BBL has supported the Boston Borough Council’s wider environmental 
initiatives, including the purchase of a cigarette butt removal machine and pouches and dog-
poo bag dispensers.  
 
Boston Monopoly Project  
 
In the last 3 months, Boston Big Local have been in talks with a company called Winning 
Moves in developing an official ‘town’ edition of the board game, Monopoly, for Boston. 
Winning Moves are the official producers of bespoke and  

  

Page 11



 

 

APPENDIX 1 

 
 
city editions of the Monopoly board game and have extensive experience of working with 
partners and producing the games to a professional standard and they hold the license from 
Hasbro to produce the Monopoly game in the UK and Europe.  
The project will promote the heritage and tourism on offer in Boston featuring 28 locations 
within the town. These will include educational establishments such as Boston Grammar 
School, Haven High School and Boston College, Grade I listed buildings like St. Botolph’s 
Church and Boston Guildhall as well as green spaces including Central Park, Witham Way 
Country Park and Westgate Woods.  
Following the pattern established with the successful “Historic Boston (UK) Trumps” card 
game, produced by Boston Big Local in partnership with the Boston Townscape Heritage 
Project and the Boston Preservation Trust, the games will be donated to charity shops and gift 
shops within the BBL and BTAC areas to sell at a price of £29.99 and every copy of the game 
they sell, they are able to keep the full price to support their local charity.  
Boston Big Local has provisionally identified 9 locations where the games will be sold, all of 
which are located within the BTAC area.  
 
• • St. Botolph's Church (The Stump)  

• • Fydell House Centre  

• • The Guildhall  

• • Shodfriars Hall  

• • Blackfriars Theatre  

• • Butterfly Hospice Trust Charity Shop  

• • Age UK L&SL Charity Shop  

• • Centrepoint Charity Shop  

• • Centenary Methodist Church  
 
It is intended that, Covid-19 permitting, the game will also be sold at the Christmas Market and 
other events attended by BBL, with the monies collected from sales also being donated to 
charities within the BBL and BTAC areas.  
 
Costs and Payment Schedule  
 
The full cost of purchasing 1500 copies of the game (which will include bespoke playing 
pieces) is £40,950.00 including VAT.  
The payment schedule for the games is as follows:  
Deposit (Artwork Fee) - £6,000 – To be paid by Boston Big Local  

1st Payment: Confirmation of Order (By 31st March 2021) - £17,475 – To be paid by Boston 
Big Local  

2nd Payment: Pre-delivery payment (By 31st August 2021) - £17,475  
 
We are requesting BTAC’s support to help with the 2nd (pre-delivery) payment and are asking 
for a grant of between £5,000 and £10,000. Whereas payment isn’t required until the end of 
August 2021, BBL will need to confirm artwork for the boxes and boards to Winning Moves by 
the end of May 2021. Therefore, if  
  

Page 12



 

 

 

APPENDIX 1 

 
BTAC was to support the project, we would need a decision by this date in order to guarantee 
that your logo is featured on the back of the box.  
 
 
The table below breaks down the amount of units that different levels of your investment will 
purchase and shows the added value to the charities and stores within the BTAC area when 
the game is sold at a R.R.P of £29.99. 
 

 

 
 
Benefits to BTAC area and its residents  

 

Whereas it is difficult to project the number of residents from the BTAC area that will directly 

benefit from this project, as there is no way of knowing who will purchase the game, there will 

be a number of benefits to the BTAC area in general.  

Firstly, local businesses, charities and historic buildings will benefit from the sale of the game 

within their stores. It is hoped that selling the game at these locations will attract new 

customers which in turn will also help boost their general sales and hopefully stimulate 

donations as well. This in turn will help these stores and charities recover from the Covid-19 

pandemic enabling them to recoup much needed funds as they were unable to fundraise or 

trade for long periods of time during the lockdowns. It is hoped that the game will uplift the 

morale of the residents of Boston, helping to bring the community together after a very tough 

year.  

We hope that the game will help advertise the heritage and entertainment offered within the 

town. The project also fits in within the wider Borough Council’s Heritage and Tourism strategy 

as it will promote the town and boost tourism into the BTAC area, with people seeking out and 

visiting the locations on the board with the hope of visiting the businesses at the same time. 

We are also hoping to include a QR code on the box of the game which will go to a website 

giving them more information and history about the locations on the board.  

  

Page 13



 

 

APPENDIX 1 

 

Promotion  

 

Taking advantage of their experience, BBL are going to be working closely with Winning Moves 

in the advertising of the game and the associated launch event. Winning Moves will also be 

working with the retailers selling the games by providing window displays and advertising the 

game through their social media channels as well as working with local media partners.  

Hopefully the launch event will take place in August / September, in order to generate the 

widest possible interest in the run up to the game going on sale. All being well, we hope that 

the game will go on sale in October, in readiness for the Christmas period, thus utilising the 

time when the purchase of board games is traditionally at its highest.  

As mentioned above, if BTAC was kind enough to support this project, your logo will be 

featured on the back of all 1500 games and you will be mentioned within all publicity promoting 

the game including press releases, radio interviews and within social media. You will also be 

invited to attend the launch event.  

 

Measuring Impact  

 

BBL will measure the impact of the project on the BTAC area by contacting the retailers on a 

regular basis to find out the number of games sold and how the money raised has supported 

their cause and charity. We will also get feedback from people who has purchased the game to 

gather their thoughts. In order to gather evidence of which customers are from the BTAC area, 

we will encourage the retailers to gather postcodes at the time of sale.  

I hope that BTAC can support this exciting project for Boston. If you require any more 

information, please do not hesitate to contact me via email on rtory@hotmail.co.uk and I look 

forward to your reply.  

 

Yours sincerely,  

 

Richard Tory  

 

Chairman, Boston Big Local  

 

www.bostonbiglocal.co.uk - Tel: 01205 311023 

Page 14



Document is Restricted

Page 15

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

 
RECOMMENDATIONS 

It is recommended that BTAC Members:  

1. Consider proposals set out at section 4 of this report to allocate £20,000 Empowering Healthy 

Communities grant funding provided to BTAC to support residents in the BTAC area 

 

REPORT TO:  BOSTON TOWN AREA COMMITTEE (BTAC) 

DATE: 20TH MAY 2021 

SUBJECT: EMPOWERING HEALTHY COMMUNITIES PROGRAMME, BTAC 

FUNDING ALLOCATION  

REPORT AUTHOR: 

 

MICHELLE HOWARD (ASSISTANT DIRECTOR, HOUSING & 

WELLBEING) 

NICHOLA HOLDERNESS (EMPOWERING HEALTHY COMMUNITIES 

PROGRAMME COORDINATOR)  

EXEMPT REPORT? NO  

SUMMARY 

Boston Borough Council is delivering a significant Health & Wellbeing Programme (Empowering Healthy 

Communities) funded by the MHCLG Community Champions Programme. As part of the programme, 

£20,000 has been allocated to BTAC for committee members to allocate to meet local need. This funding 

allocation can be spent to support local communities, provided this spend is in line with the grant 

conditions (set out within the report).   

Two options are presented to members for consideration:  

- An evidence based proposal is included for consideration by BTAC members linked to digital 

literacy and language support.  BTAC may wish to progress this proposal, or, may wish to agree an 

alternative approach 

 

- BTAC may prefer to add the grant funding to an existing TAC small grants scheme, to enable a 

health and wellbeing focussed grant allocation opportunity  

It is recommended that the work to deliver the preferred approach commences within the next four to six 

weeks and that BTAC receives regular reports on progress and impact. The outcomes achieved through 

this funding would also be reported to the Empowering Healthy Communities Programme Board and to 

MHCLG. Officers are able to support BTAC members to consider and agree their preferred approach to 

allocate the funding, ensuring that proposals are in line with the MHCLG grant conditions and to enable 

delivery and outcomes.  

Page 17

Agenda Item 2



2. Delegate to the Assistant Director, Housing and Wellbeing, authority to commission and 

implement the agreed approach to allocate the funding; in consultation with the BTAC Chair and 

Portfolio Holder for Housing and Communities  

 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

To support local residents and communities through and beyond the pandemic in line with the associated 

grant conditions and Memorandum of Understanding between Boston Borough Council and MHCLG. The 

funding should enhance and accelerate efforts to improve health and wellbeing across the BTAC area and 

can be used to address local need.  

 

OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

Not allocate the funding or delay allocation of the funding: This option is not recommended. The 

funding has been committed and added to the BTAC budget to support the local community. 

Officers are required to demonstrate to MHCLG that all funded projects are in delivery by 30th 

June to avoid any risk of returning any unspent monies. 

 

REPORT 

1. Boston Borough Council was one of sixty local authorities across the country that was invited to apply for 

funding through the MHCLG Community Champions Programme. This funding programme is to help local 

areas to diversify, enhance and accelerate community engagement opportunities to best support 

communities identified as being disproportionately at risk from Covid-19 

 

1.1. The national programme seeks to enable local areas to accelerate, enhance and target community 

engagement opportunities to increase trust and confidence in public health messaging, improve 

engagement and take up of messaging and initiatives, to develop and build community insight and 

relationships and to develop a vital feedback mechanism to understand what works, what doesn’t 

and what can be done differently at a local and national level 

 

1.2. It aims to support a range of interventions to build upon, increase or improve existing activities to 
work with residents who are most at risk of Covid-19 - helping to build trust and empower at risk 
groups to protect themselves and their families. The broader aim is to reduce the impact of the virus 
on all communities, beyond just the target areas that we will work with through this scheme. 
 

2. Boston Borough Council is delivering a significant Health & Wellbeing Programme (Empowering Healthy 

Communities) funded by the MHCLG Community Champions: Local Authority Fund  

 

2.1. £494,800 has been allocated to Boston Borough Council to deliver the Empowering Healthy 

Communities Programme 

 

2.2. Further details about the wider programme can be found at Appendix A 

 

2.3. A previous Cabinet Report on the Empowering healthy Communities Programme can be found here 

  

Page 18

https://moderngov.boston.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=130&MId=1677&Ver=4


 

3. It is recognised that BTAC has a key role in supporting local communities and is well placed to deliver a 

strand of the programme.  

 

3.1. As part of the programme £20,000 has been allocated to BTAC. This funding has already been added 

to the BTAC budget. 

 

3.2. This funding allocation can be spent to support local communities, provided this spend is in line with 

the grant conditions / Memorandum of Understanding between Boston Borough Council & MHCLG 

(Appendix B) 

 

3.3. MHCLG require that funded activities will have ‘begun a reasonable level of implementation’ by 30th 

June 2021 

 

3.4. Funded activities / projects are expected to: 

 

 Build residents’ confidence to integrate and engage more widely in their local communities and 

mix with people from different backgrounds 

 

 Adopt approaches to engagement that supports social connection to the local area and builds 

confidence to use local amenities and services  

 

 Provide practical solutions to overcome barriers, such as supporting those experiencing digital 

exclusion 

 

 Be targeted using the best available national and local sources of evidence of need  

 

 Exhibit good governance and the collection of robust evidence to enable measurement of 

progress in achieving the Funds aims 

 

 Deliver genuine value for money with robust programme management  

 

 

3.5.  Funded activities / projects within the programme should enable the overall programme to achieve 

the following outcomes: 

 

 Build strong links between Government and places where Covid 19 has impacted most 

significantly to develop resilience and improve and increase mechanisms for outreach, 

communication, engagement within the area  

 

 Increase understanding by local authorities of local population needs and provision of practical 

tools to aid accessibility to improve social connection, digital inclusion, civic engagement and 

integration with the wider local area 

 

 Increase capability to interact with and communicate information and guidance from 

Government and local authorities that is accessible to diverse communities, who may be harder 

to reach or receiving misinformation, facilitating the following of safer behaviours and making of 

informed choices 

 

 Build stronger relationships and engagement between communities, groups and local authorities 

where there may be tensions, mistrust or negative connotations exacerbated by the pandemic   

 
Page 19



 Increased access to guidance and awareness of Government support mechanisms, for example 

Universal Credit, to increase access to employment, education and / or volunteering 

opportunities 

 

 Increased access to guidance and awareness of Council and local support services through 

outreach and practical tools to improve access to economic support to alleviate hardship to 

support longer term positive economic impacts 

 

 Increased access to guidance, vaccination programmes and public health services, through 
outreach and practical tools to improve health and wellbeing of residents, especially those from 
disproportionately impacted groups, and their families 

 

 Increased coordination and dialogue with public health providers by local authorities to create 
more cohesive and trusted messaging 

 

 Build open, transparent dialogue over any local testing or vaccine deployment programmes 
within communities to address any misconceptions about efficacy and safety, counter 
misinformation, fill real knowledge voids and provide clarity on vaccination roll-out to build 
support and promote take up 

 

 Increased visibility of Community Champions, volunteers and community groups to encourage 
more mutual aid and volunteer provision able to support local authority delivery 

 

4. Options for Consideration 

 

4.1. Option 1. Digital Access Proposal: Further to feedback from the BTAC chair regarding barriers linked 

to digital literacy and English language skills, a proposal has been received from Lincs Digital for 

consideration by BTAC. This can be found at Appendix C.  

 

The proposal is intended to provide an indication of the package that could be developed and would 

be flexible to meet local need. Lincs Digital have expressed a willingness to work alongside local 

translation services to develop a BTAC area programme that is responsive to the needs of the 

community.  The basic premise of the proposal / offer can be summarised as: 

 

 Access to / provision of tablets and where appropriate, internet access  

 Access to virtual digital access support sessions  

 Community based support sessions (as appropriate / required) 

 Digital champion training / upskilling of local digital champions 

 Link with translation and language support services to ensure that the offer is accessible across 

our diverse communities, through a relationship with PAB Translation (a partner within the 

overall Empowering Healthy Communities Programme)  

 A branded and localised digital support programme.  

 

 

4.2. Option 2. Members may wish to add the funding to an existing BTAC small grants scheme, enabling 

a health and wellbeing focussed grant allocation opportunity. Any grants funded in this way would 

need to demonstrate alignment with the Empowering Healthy Communities grant conditions and 

project outcomes.  

 

4.3. BTAC members may wish to consider and agree an alternative approach to allocate the funding. 

  

Page 20



 

4.4. The Empowering Healthy Communities Programme Coordinator and other key officers are available 

to support BTAC to commission, deliver and monitor the BTAC funded programme strand 

 

4.5. It is recommended that the work to deliver the preferred approach commences within the next four 

to six weeks and that BTAC receive regular reports on progress and impact.  

 

4.6. The outcomes achieved through this funding would also be reported to the Empowering Healthy 

Communities Programme Board and MHCLG.  

 
 
CONCLUSION 
 
The Empowering Healthy Communities Programme provides a positive opportunity to support Boston 
communities through and beyond the pandemic. This is a positive and ambitious health and wellbeing 
programme for the Borough and has been identified as one that will be evaluated nationally.  
 
It is recognised that BTAC has a key role in supporting local communities and is well placed to deliver a strand 
of the programme. £20,000 has been allocated to BTAC to enable this. This funding allocation can be spent to 
support local communities, provided this spend is in line with the grant conditions. 
 

 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
The Empowering Healthy Communities Programme is fully externally funded. All spend would 
be in line with the grant agreement between MHCLG and Boston Borough Council. As part of 
this programme, £20,000 has been allocated to the BTAC budget to enable the delivery of the 
agreed approach. This has already been added to the BTAC budget.  

 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

In accordance with the provisions of the grant, the funding must be spent in line with the grant 

conditions 

 

CLIMATE CHANGE AND ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS 

None  

 

EQUALITY AND SAFEGUARDING IMPLICATIONS 

The Community Champions Programme seeks to reduce inequalities by increasing insight and 

engagement and to maximise opportunities, accessibility and take up of public health messaging 

and initiatives (such as testing, vaccination, self-isolation) and support.  Accessibility forms a key 

part of our strategy and we will review and respond to data, insights, feedback and public health 

messaging at all times – our approach will need to continually evolve to meet the needs of our 

communities. 

 

Page 21



OTHER IMPLICATIONS  

This work forms an important part of our Covid19 response. 

 

CONSULTATION 

No formal consultation. However, initial engagement with community leaders has been well 

received, effective and will continue to shape our engagement strategy and activity plans to ensure 

the success of this programme 

 

APPENDICES 

Appendices are listed below and attached to the back of the report: - 

APPENDIX A Empowering Healthy Communities Member Briefing Presentation 

(updated 26/02/21) 

APPENDIX B Memorandum of Understanding between MHCLG and Boston 

Borough Council  

APPENDIX C Digital Support Proposal  

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

No background papers as defined in Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972 were used 

in the production of this report 

 

CHRONOLOGICAL HISTORY OF THIS REPORT 

A report on this item has not been previously considered by a Council body. However, Cabinet 

approved a report on the overall Empowering Healthy Communities Programme in February 

2021. A link to this meeting can be found here.  

 

REPORT APPROVAL  

Report author: Michelle Howard 

Assistant Director, Housing & Wellbeing  

Signed off by: Michelle Sacks 

Deputy Chief Executive  

 

Page 22

https://moderngov.boston.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=130&MId=1677&Ver=4


Boston Empowering Healthy Communities 
Programme 

(Community Champions Fund)

Elected Member Briefing 22.02.21

P
age 23



Background

• December 2020: Boston Borough Council one of sixty Local Authorities
invited to apply for MHCLG Community Champions Fund
– Diversity of the Borough

– ‘Harder to Reach’ groups and communities

– Sustained levels of Covid 19

– Situational risk factors

• January 2021: secured £494,800 to develop a locally relevant programme
designed to:

Build upon, increase or improve existing activities to work with residents who are most at risk of 
Covid-19, helping to build trust and empower at risk groups to protect themselves and their families. 

The broader aim is to reduce the impact of the virus on all communities, beyond just the target 
areas that we will work with through this scheme

P
age 24



Empowering Healthy Communities 
• An ambitious health and wellbeing 

programme, £494,800 funding 

• Requirement to commit funding by 
31st March 2021, but a 12 month 
delivery programme

• Range of projects and programmes –
some council led, some partner led

• Scope for flexibility and ability to 
respond to what is needed in our 
place 

• An opportunity to shape policy and 
learning at a national level 

P
age 25



What do we want to achieve?
Increased understanding and confidence in key health messages, initiatives and 

programmes 

Local engagement and take up of key programmes and initiatives – for example 
testing, vaccination, self isolation, support, address misconceptions, filling gaps in 

knowledge and information

A better understanding of why people may not feel able to or willing to engage 
and options to overcome potential barriers 

Building on local relationships and learning from our communities and 
community leaders 

P
age 26



What do we want to achieve?
Opportunities and solutions that our right and meaningful for our communities –

let’s not use the words ‘hard to reach’

A programme that has impact – not just now, but into the future

A partnership that will be strengthened and projects that can be improved by 
learning and responding to what works, what doesn’t work and what needs to be 

done differently 

Influencing what works – locally and nationally - to support communities and 
reduce the impact of Covid 19 now and in the future

P
age 27



COMMUNICATION AND ENGAGEMENT 

How will we go about this?

Increased access to translation and 
transcription for partners within the 

programme to convey messages, information to 
meet the needs of our local communities 

Increased use of media, social media, 
opportunities to convey messages etc. using 

channels and mechanisms most appropriate to 
reach our communities. Consistent, clear 

messaging shared by all partners on key public 
health messages / information

Direct Engagement and interaction for example 
housing officer, letters, events

Continued engagement with Community 
Leaders – recognition of key role and value as 

trusted community representatives

An Empowering Healthy Communities Engagement Plan that is co-produced with community 
leaders and stakeholders and delivered in partnership – dynamic, responsive to emerging evidence, 

feedback and local / national public health messages.

Consistent, clear messaging shared by all partners on key public health messages / information

Information / best practice sharing 

P
age 28



COMMUNITY SUPPORT AND RESILIENCE 

Accelerate and support the development of 
Good Neighbour Schemes – Communities 

supporting communities 

Accelerate and support the development of 
Boston Youth Ambassador Scheme

Launch Boston Language Lab (led by Haven High 
School) - language and family support and 

engagement 

Housing, Health and Wellbeing Officer to 
support tenants and landlords to ensure safety 

and wellbeing, especially in shared housing 

Access to Mental Health First Aid Training for 
community groups, community leaders and 

volunteers

Behavioural Insights Research and Analysis –
understanding barriers to engagement 

Cultural Awareness briefings/training to build 
understanding of our diverse communities 

Councillor Grant Scheme to support local 
communities (details to be confirmed)

A programme to encourage and develop Future 
Leaders  (details to be confirmed)

Pride in our Place – a sense of community post 
Covid

P
age 29



Key Partnerships

• Community Leaders
• Communities 
• Empowering Healthy Communities Programme Board 
• Boston Strategic Health Partnership

• Lincolnshire County Council, Public Health
• Lincolnshire Clinical Commissioning Group
• Lincolnshire Police 
• Housing Providers
• MHCLG
• Lincolnshire Community and Voluntary Service (LCVS)
• Local Government Association (LGA)
• Haven High Academy
• Lincolnshire YMCA / Community Lincs
• PAB Translation 
• BTAC
• Social Change UK
• Homelessness charities – P3, Framework, Centre Point Outreach 

(Note: Emerging programme / partnerships)

P
age 30



Progress Update 
(26th February 2021)

• Programme Coordinator appointed – Nichola Holderness

• Work programme framework  in place, key partners identified, partnership agreements in development  

• Housing, Health and Wellbeing Coordinator appointed (starts March 22nd) 

• Access to national and regional learning forums and platforms 

• Engagement with business and community leaders

• Learning from Community Leaders / Responding to Feedback

• Learning and reflections from community testing programme – see also LGA case study

• Request for Quotation issued – Pride in our Place 

• Procurement process initiated – Behavioural Insights Research 

• Discussions underway with all proposed delivery partners to agree scope and SLAs

• Next Community Leaders briefing – 10th March 2021: focus on vaccination, reaching ‘harder to reach’  groups, project 
updates

P
age 31



High Level Funding Allocations
Indicative funding allocations to each of the overarching programme strands is listed 
below.

Officers are still developing formal agreements and finalising allocations for each 
individual element of the programme. 

Programme Strand Indicative
Allocation

Communications and Engagement £170,500

Community Support and 
Resilience 

£286,400

Community Champions Network 
(Programme Coordination)

£37,900

Total £494,800

P
age 32



COMMUNITY CHAMPIONS: LOCAL AUTHORITY FUND
  

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
 
Purpose 

1. This Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) is entered into between Boston Borough 
Council and the Secretary of State for Housing, Communities and Local Government 
(‘MHCLG’). The MOU provides a framework for Boston Borough Council and 
MHCLG to collaborate on the Community Champions: Local Authority Fund 
programme and sets out the expectations of both parties.  

 
2. While this is not a legally enforceable agreement, this MOU sets out:

 funding arrangements from MHCLG to Boston Borough Council to deliver 
the agreed activity and outcomes; and

 the agreed principles for monitoring and evaluating the delivery and 
outcomes of the project, including the respective responsibilities of Boston 
Borough Council and MHCLG. 

 
Duration 

3. The MOU relates the Community Champions: Local Authority Fund 2020/21. All 
funding to be committed in the period 01 January 2020 to 31 March 2021. Delivery of 
activities can extend beyond 31 March 2021, with the expectation of all funded 
activities to have begun a reasonable level of implementation by 30 June 2021.

MHCLG will be expected to:

Provide funding 

4. MHCLG will provide £494,800 funding to Boston Borough Council via powers given 
under Section 31 of the Local Government Act 2003 (‘section 31 grant’), in the 
expectation that funding is used to deliver the agreed objectives of the Community 
Champions: Local Authority Fund programme. 

Maintain a relationship as grant funder 
 

5. MHCLG as grant funder will: 

 Provide constructive and practical support and challenge to the grant-
holding local authority

 Monitor progress on the delivery of the agreed outputs and outcomes
 Provide steer to grant-holding local authorities on data collection and 

monitoring and evaluation activities.
 Work with grant-holding local authorities and partner organisations to 

facilitate the sharing of good practice and collaborative problem solving.  

Page 33



Boston Borough Council will be expected to:

Deliver the aims and objectives of the programme

6. The Community Champions: Local Authority Fund aims to support a range of 
interventions to build upon, increase or improve existing activities to work with 
residents who are most at risk of Covid-19 - helping to build trust and empower at-
risk groups to protect themselves and their families. The broader aim is to reduce the 
impact of the virus on all communities, beyond just the target areas that we will work 
with through this scheme.  

7. Funded projects are expected to:

 Build residents’ confidence to integrate and engage more widely in their local 
communities and mix with people from different backgrounds.

 Adopt approaches to engagement that supports social connection to the local area 
and builds confidence to use local amenities and services. 

 Provide practical solutions to overcome barriers, such as supporting those 
experiencing digital exclusion. 

 Be targeted using the best available national and local sources of evidence of need. 

 Exhibit good governance and the collection of robust evidence to enable 
measurement of progress in achieving the Funds aims. 

 Deliver genuine value for money with robust programme management. 

Project outputs 

8. The project outputs are as detailed within sections two and three of the Expression of 
Interest form submitted by Boston Borough Council.

Project outcomes 

9. Activities will aim to address the following outcomes within the duration of the project: 

 Build strong links between Government and places where Covid -19 has 
impacted most significantly to develop resiliencies and improve and increase 
mechanisms for outreach, communication, engagement within the area.    

 Increased understanding by local authorities of local populations needs 
and provision of practical tools to aid accessibility to improve social 
connection, digital inclusion, civic engagement and integration with wider local 
area. 

 Increase capability to interact and communicate information and 
guidance from Government and local authorities that is accessible to 
diverse communities, who may be harder to reach or receiving 
misinformation, facilitating the following of safer behaviours and making of 
informed choices.

Page 34



 Build stronger relationships and engagement between communities, 
groups and local authorities where there may be tensions, mistrust or 
negative connotations exacerbated by the pandemic. 

 Increased access to guidance and awareness of Government support 
mechanisms, for example Universal Credit, to increase access to 
employment, education and/or volunteering opportunities.

 Increased access to guidance and awareness of Council and local 
support services through outreach and practical tools to improve access to 
economic support and alleviate hardship to support longer term positive 
economic impacts.

 Increased access to guidance, vaccination programmes and public 
health services, through outreach and practical tools to improve health and 
wellbeing of residents, especially those from disproportionately impacted 
groups, and their families. 

 Increased coordination and dialogue with public health providers by 
local authorities to create more cohesive and trusted messaging. 

 Build open, transparent dialogue over any local testing or vaccine 
deployment programmes within communities to address any 
misconceptions about efficacy and safety, counter misinformation, fill real 
knowledge voids and provide clarity on vaccination roll-out to build support 
and promote take up.

 Increased visibility of Community Champions, volunteers and 
community groups to encourage more mutual aid and volunteer provision 
able to support local authority delivery.

Coronavirus (Covid -19) 

10. Boston Borough Council will be expected to promote and adhere to Government 
recommendations, messaging and Public Health England guidance provided to them 
directly from Government and/or through their Local Resilience Forum on and about 
Covid-19 when providing any activities funded by the Community Champions 
programme.  

Monitoring and evaluation 

11. Boston Borough Council will be expected to provide short monthly progress reports 
during the funding period starting from using a template provided by MHCLG. Further 
information and forms will be provided separately. Progress reports should be 
submitted on the first Friday of each month, commencing 05 March 2021, outlining 
the previous month’s activities.    

12. Further information and template regarding the submitting of a short final report will 
be provided by MHCLG. 

Page 35



Process evaluation 

13. Participating local authorities may be asked by MHCLG to participate in an 
independently commissioned process evaluation to help MHCLG better understand 
whether the programme was able to achieve its stated aims. This would involve 
programme managers, stakeholders and project delivery partners participating in 
qualitative interviews and focus groups with an appointed external evaluator. Any 
consent documentation required, including data sharing agreements, will be 
undertaken separate to this MOU.

14. It is expected that any local evaluation conducted by participating authorities, or any 
linked organisations, regarding Community Champion funded projects and activities 
will be shared with MHCLG. This will be for the purpose of understanding the impact 
of the pandemic on communities and the identification of any best practice or 
learning to inform future policy making. 

Shared learning

15. We will work with a smaller number of local authorities to gather additional best 
practice examples and case studies which we will share more widely across central 
and local Government. This will involve attending meetings and other feedback 
sessions – most likely all virtual/online – to discuss and share what we are learning 
through the scheme, to apply this to future work. 

16. Participating local authorities will be encouraged to share knowledge, resources and 
practical solutions with non-funded local authorities to ensure other areas and their 
local communities benefit indirectly from the Fund.

Data Protection

17. Boston Borough Council will be responsible for establishing secure data control of 
any resident information between Community Champions and/or partnership 
orgainsations and themselves.

18. Boston Borough Council will be responsible for ensuring requirements under the 
General Data Protection Regulation and Data Protection Act 2018, including the 
need for a Data Protection Impact Assessment, are adhered to for any quantitative 
and qualitative data collected as part of the or Community Champion activities. 

19. Boston Borough Council may be asked by MHCLG to share details of programme 
activities with other local authorities, government departments or relevant 
organisations. Any consent documentation required for these activities, including 
data sharing agreements, will be undertaken separate to this MOU.

20. Boston Borough Council may be asked by MHCLG to participate in activities through 
an appointed evaluator to help MHCLG better understand whether the programme 
was able to achieve its stated aims. Consent documentation for these activities, 
including data sharing agreements, will be undertaken separate to this MOU.

Page 36



Use of capital assets

21. Any Capital purchases e.g. laptops or digital tools must be for direct benefit of the 
Community Champions programme and after completion of the programme must be 
used for the longer-term benefit of the community.

Safeguarding requirements

22. Boston Borough Council shall be responsible for ensuring all activities involving 
groups or individual’s under-16 are overseen in full adherence with safeguarding 
requirements including where appropriate full DBS checks.

Community funding/micro-grants 

23. Boston Borough Council will be responsible for procedure, contract management and 
undertaking due diligence processes (including but not limited to the prevention of 
financial crime), on all organisations in receipt of financial support, which will be used 
in the delivery of the Community Champions programme. All activities funded as part 
of the Community Champions programme by the local authority, delivery partners or 
community organisations are expected to clearly meet the aims of the Community 
Champions programme as set out on page two.

Procurement

24. Boston borough Council will be responsible for ensuring that any third-party 
partnership arrangements or procurement activities related to delivering activities for 
the Community Champions: Local Authority Fund programme comply with 
Procurement Law and Boston Borough Council’s own procurement procedures. 

25. "Procurement Law" includes, but is not restricted to the Public Contracts 
Regulations 2015, Concession Contracts Regulations 2016, Defence Security Public 
Contracts Regulations 2011 and the Utilities and Contracts Regulations 2016 
together with their amendments, updates and replacements from time to time

Compliance with State Aid Law 

26. Boston Borough Council will be responsible for ensuring compliance with State Aid 
Law for the full term of their Community Champions: Local Authority Fund 
programme.

27. "State Aid Law" means the UK’s international subsidy control commitments from 1 
January 2021 (as amended from time to time) that replace the law embodied in 
Articles 107 -109 of Section 2, Title VII, of the Common Rules on Competition, 
Taxation and Approximation of Laws- Consolidated Versions of the Treaty on 
European Union and the Treaty on the Functioning of the European Union..

Due Diligence

28. Boston Borough Council will be responsible for undertaking due diligence checks on 
all third-party organisations receiving funding and/or involved in delivery of their 
Community Champion: Local Authority Fund programme.  

Page 37



Amendment of this Memorandum of Understanding

29. The arrangements under this MOU will be kept under review by MHCLG and Boston 
Borough Council and can be amended at any time upon securing written agreement 
between both parties. 

 

Signed by: 

Name: Rob Barlow,
 Chief Executive 
Boston Borough Council 
 

Dated: 18th January 2021

Signed by: 

Name:  Thomas Lovesey 
Duly authorised to sign for the 
Secretary of State for Housing, 
Communities and Local 
Government
  
 Dated:  19 January 2021

Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

 
 

REPORT TO: BOSTON TOWN AREA COMMITTEE  

DATE: 20TH MAY 2021 

SUBJECT: REGULATING AND SAFEGUARDING BOSTON’S ECONOMY TASK AND 

FINISH GROUP RECOMMENDATIONS IN RELATION TO CENTRAL 

PARK SECURITY 

KEY DECISION: NO 

REPORT AUTHOR: 

WARD(S) AFFECTED:               

ASSISTANT DIRECTOR – REGULATION, MR CHRISTIAN ALLEN 

WITHAM WARD  

EXEMPT REPORT? NO 

 

SUMMARY 

Under the auspices of the Environment and Performance Overview and Scrutiny Committee, 

Regulating and Safeguarding Boston’s Economy Task and Finish Group conducted a review and 

developed 13 Recommendations. The recommendations were accepted by the parent 

committee and referred to Cabinet on 2nd December 2020. Cabinet agreed to accept all 13 

recommendations but determined that the two relating to Central Park be delegated to Boston 

Town Area Committee for consideration. 

At the Boston Town Area Committee meeting held on 3rd February 2021, members agreed to 

accept the two recommendations concerning Central Park, and delegated by Cabinet, and 

instructed officers to produce an options report including costings and Officer opinions.  

This report sets out the options as requested together with indicative costings and Officer 

opinion for members of BTAC to consider.  

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

That BTAC consider the options set out in this report and delegate the Assistant Director 

Regulation, in consultation with the Chairman of BTAC, Leader Portfolio Holder and Section 151 

Officer, authority to implement the option selected. 

 

  

Page 43

Agenda Item 3



 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

To implement the two recommendations (12 and 13) as approved by Cabinet and delegated to 

BTAC. 

To provide an effective and funded arrangement for effectively addressing anti-social behaviour 

in Central Park 

 

OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

Options as set out in the report plus do nothing.  

 

REPORT 

1. Background of Task & Finish Review 
 

1.1. The Environment and Performance Overview and Scrutiny Committee receives as part of its 

work programme, quarterly performance monitoring reports. These reports are used to 

inform future topics for scrutiny aligned to the corporate priorities of the committee. The 

Committee also receives statutory annual update reports in respect of anti-social behaviour 

and CCTV activity across the borough. 

 

1.2. At the Environment and Performance Overview and Scrutiny Committee meeting held on 

the 24 September 2019, members voiced concern at the number of on-going complaints 

raised by members of the public in respect of anti-social behaviour within the borough. The 

complaints included a wide range of anti-social activity, coupled with ongoing public 

criticism of incidents at licensed premises in relation to illegal alcohol sales. Officers 

suggested that due to the potential range of the review, preliminary scrutiny could assist in 

scoping the task and determining how to move a more detailed review forward.  Members 

held an Inquiry Evening on 5th November 2020, with Police and Council Officers in 

attendance, and determined that a Task and Finish Group would be established.  

 

1.3. The Inquiry Evening determined that the scope of the Task and Finish Group would be as 

follows: 

 Alcohol and premises licensing and associated enforcement. 

 Trading Standards and HMRC powers, policies, procedures and enforcement 

options / outcomes for dealing with counterfeit and non-duty paid goods. 

 Home Office and Police powers, policies and procedures for dealing with 

those with no recourse to public funds and those not exercising their treaty 

rights. 

 Housing and Homelessness duties, options and support models.  

 Public Space Protection Orders and other Council enforcement 

arrangements. 

 Tasking the local MP to raise any relevant issues with Government. 

Page 44



1.4. At various meetings during 2020, the Task and Finish Group heard from Council Officers, 

Partner Agencies, Local Business members, Charity and Volunteer Groups, as well as 

conducting public consultation to inform the final recommendations of the review.  

 

2. Cabinet – 2 December 2020  

 

2.1. Councillor Judith Skinner, Madam Chairman of both Environment and Performance 

Committee and Task and Finish Group took a report to Cabinet on 2nd December 2020, 

where 13 group recommendations were presented. Cabinet approved all 13 

recommendations and agreed to delegate two relating to Central Park to BTAC. It was 

also agreed that an update be provided to Environment and Performance Committee, 

on implementation of the recommendations, at the appropriate time agreed with 

Madam Chairman. 

 

3. Task and Finish Group Recommendations which reference Central Park 

 

3.1. The following recommendations are those agreed by Cabinet for delegation to BTAC; 

 

3.2. Recommendation 12 – That the council consider locking the Central Park gates 

overnight to address on-going issues of ASB within the park. That if required a trial 

period of four months be agreed to allow monitoring of incidents during that time to 

either support or not, the closing of the gates permanently overnight. That agreement is 

reached as to who fund the cost of who will close the gates and that a request be made 

to the BTAC committee for such funding for the trial, or if agreed on a permanent basis. 

 

3.3. Recommendation 13 – That BTAC be requested to consider the funding of a service for 

Central Park to address ongoing anti-social behaviour in the park.  

 

3.4. Central Park - historical context: Prior to the decision for the Central Park gates to 

remain unlocked 24/7, a member of council staff physically locked the gates and rang a 

hand bell to let park users know the gates were being locked. The decision was made to 

stop doing this due to the risk exposed to the council staff member when trying to ask 

people to leave and the need to manage out of hours calls from users that had been 

locked in the park. Vandalism was also a regular occurrence with fencing rails removed 

from the perimeter fence when persons wished to gain access to or egress from the 

park when locked. Each rail cost in the region of £100 to replace. Officers also found 

that rough sleeping and associated anti-social behaviour was prevalent during the night 

when the park was locked. Officers would advise against council employees being 

tasked to revert to locking of the park due to the inherent health and safety risk. 

Clearing the park prior to locking the gates will also be more difficult now due to the 

enhanced facilities provided such as the skate park and MUGA.  The risk of injury from 

members of the public removing rails or trying to climb over rails to access the Park 

would also leave the Council liable to claims as owners of the park.  It should be noted 

that no rails have been replaced in the fence to the park since the park has remained 

open at night. A return to locking of the park at night is likely to see a return to the 

vandalism of the fence and an increase in repair costs 

 

Page 45



4. OPTIONS 

4.1 To implement the recommendations delegated to BTAC, should members support a return 

to locking Central Park, Officers have developed four options for consideration: 

4.2 Option 1 - Employ a security firm – Security personnel with the appropriate competency 

and training would patrol the Park and open and lock the park on a daily basis.  

4.3 A quote has been obtained to provide an opening and locking service only at £16,500 per 

annum, with an additional fee if locking takes longer than two hours on any given day if the 

Park is particularly busy. This does not include patrolling the Park. 

4.4 A second quote has been received to provide opening and locking the Park on a daily basis 

including onsite security patrolling presence at a cost of £103,017 per annum, based on a 

two security officer model.  

4.5 Option 2 – Use of BTAC Operatives - Officers considered the option of using BTAC 

Operatives to deliver these services and Matt Fisher, Boston Borough Council’s Operations 

Service Manager has provided the following advice; 

“Providing a locking service or a security patrolling service for the Park, would require 

employees who have specific core competencies and have experience in providing 

security or enforcement services. It is not recommended that current employees are 

retrained to do this work as this would have a significant effect on those employees and 

their ability to deliver wider key continued improvements in the BTAC area”. 

4.6 Officers suggest the use of the BTAC Operatives is not recommended for further 

development or scoping. 

4.7 Option 3 - install maglock gates – this is an electronic access control system that would 

automatically lock and unlock the gates at predetermined times and would enable those 

locked in, to get out. The option would require power to be made available at each gate, of 

which there are five in total. The cost of groundwork would be £10,000 to £15,000, plus the 

additional cost of adapting the gates and installing the hardware etc. This also does not 

take away the risk of the maglocks failing and users being locked in the Park. There is also 

the risk that this encourages members of the public to climb over the fence and open the 

gate from the inside to gain access for a group.   

4.8 Nigel Hall, Boston Borough Council’s Property Services Officer has given the following 

update with regard to his views on the option to install maglock gates: 

“Having considered the proposal further I consider that installing an electronic access 

control system that locks and unlocks the gates automatically is impractical and will be 

ineffective. The main issues are:- 

 Adapting  gates and pillars to receive locking mechanisms  

 Cost of providing power to each gate 

 Probably having to provide a data connection to each gate so timings of 
locking / unlocking could be controlled.  

 Emergency exits would have to be provided (if the gates were locked 
automatically people would inevitably be locked in the park) however anyone 
could then climb the fence undo the gate and leave / prop it open. 

 A method to “self- close” the gate would be required otherwise the gate 
could not be locked if it was in the open position which they are during the 

Page 46



day, due to the weight / design of the existing gates I don’t think this would 
be possible. The gates would inevitably have to be replaced. 

 An increase in railings being removed would be inevitable, removal of railings 
has been less of an issue since the park has been unlocked, there are however 
several missing currently that will be replaced in due course.  

 Any electronic lock could be vandalised rendering the system inoperative, any 
repair would be time consuming (no guarantee of repairs being carried out 
immediately) expensive and the sourcing of parts especially long term would 
be an issue. Whilst padlocks and chains can be cut, replacements are 
immediately available. 

 
In summary, the installation and ongoing maintenance costs would be prohibitive to 
provide an electronic access control system that in effect would not work successfully in 
practice.” 
 

4.9 Therefore Officers would suggest to members that a maglock gate system is not 
recommended for further development or scoping.  

 
4.10 Option 4 – Employ three additional ASB Officers to patrol the park - Security / ASB 

personnel employed directly by the Council or BTAC, managed by the Community Safety 
Manager, with the appropriate competency and training would patrol the park on a daily 
basis (including weekends). Based on the salary grade point of the existing Council’s ASB 
Officers (including all on costs) the costs per annum for three officers would be £127,200, 
based on the 2021/22 budget rates. 

 
5.0 Consultation with Boston Sector Police Inspector Francesca Harrod on behalf of  

Lincolnshire Police 
 
5.1 Officers have requested that the Lincolnshire Police Sector Inspector who covers Boston 

provide their view on Central Park Security and the recommendations being put to BTAC 
members for this committee report. Police Inspector Andrew Morrice provided his view, on 
behalf of Lincolnshire Police, for the BTAC Committee Report heard on 27 February 2019, 
which members can find a link to the full report under the Background Papers Section of 
this report, and Police Inspector Francesca Harrod, who is the current Lincolnshire Police 
Sector Inspector who covers Boston, has been consulted with fully during the Task and 
Finish Review and again on the recommendations made in this committee report. 

 
5.2  Police have expressed concerns that demand generated by behaviour in Central Park 

requires a problem solving approach, including but not limited to the closure at night, 
and/or attention during the day. 

 
5.3 Since figures and opinion were offered to the Council upon the decision to keep the park 

unlocked for the BTAC Committee Report heard on 27 February 2019, the latest statistics 
and opinion of Lincolnshire Police have now been revisited. 

 
5.4 From 25 April 2019 to 25 April 2020 there were 101 different incidents reported, 34 being 

within the hours of 09:00 to 17:00, 67 being outside of office hours. Only 23 of them were 
graded by the force control room as non-attendance, the others were graded for 
attendance by officers as urgent (20), priority (50) and routine (8).  

  

Page 47



 
5.5  During this time the park was briefly locked at the request of Police working in partnership 

with Boston Borough Council as part of the initial response to Lockdown 1 at the beginning 
of the Coronavirus Pandemic. It is notable that whilst the park was locked, no police 
incidents at all were reported between 24 March 2020 and 19 April 2020. The park was 
then reopened, in line with Government guidance that recreational spaces should reopen 
to enable daily exercise. 

 
5.6 From 26 April 2020 to 26 April 2021 there were 144 different reported incidents reported, 

45 being within the hours of 09:00 to 17:00, 99 being outside of office hours. 39 were 
graded as non-attendance, 17 as urgent, 85 as priority and 3 as routine.  

 
5.7 It is notable that all of the noise nuisance incidents (24 of the total) were reported by a 

variety of people, long after the park would traditionally have been closed. Noise nuisance 
incidents are not routinely attended by the Police, but in COVID times if there is an element 
of suspected rule breaking, they will have been.  

 
5.8 So concerned were the Boston Neighbourhood Policing team about the sheer volume of 

incidents being called in with the park as the location (compared to previous years), officers 
were deployed in plain clothes on several occasions to observe for themselves conduct of 
those using the park, both in the early evening and into the night. They confirmed having to 
engage and break up groups as late as midnight, playing loud music and being rowdy. 

 
5.9 In one particular spate of incidents, one of the Community Beat Managers having moved on 

such a group pulled all the gates of the park shut behind him, giving the impression that the 
park was closed (it was not – a simple push would have allowed access or egress). There 
were no further incidents reported in that night, having been hourly prior to his actions. 

 
5.10 The park comes up as an area of repeated anti-social behaviour. As such, Police and 

partners are obliged to work together to problem solve issues that are causing the ASB. In 
this case, there is a consensus that short of a full-time uniformed presence in the park, 
24/7, there is little more that can be suggested than overnight closure easing unacceptable 
behaviour after dark. 

 
5.11 Those legitimately using available facilities, especially the new and improved offering for 

young people have not been the sources of concern, indeed legitimate users of the park 
introduce an element of societal self-policing. It is important to point this out as we can be 
quick to blame young people. In this case, their legitimate presence is a benefit, during 
normal opening hours. 

 
5.12 The inevitable question is to ask why there are now more incidents in the park than when 

the decision was initially made to keep it open 24/7. Whilst absolutely not the only cause, 
the pandemic and the inability for considerable amounts of the year to socialise, meet or 
gather indoors have undoubtedly lead to it becoming a busier space, and Police having to 
attend more  in order to deal both with traditional crime and ASB, but also potential 
breaches of COVID regulations. 

 
  

Page 48



5.13 It is not realistic to expect the need to Police the park to dwindle to zero, however it is my 
belief that reintroducing the locking of the gates will assist out of hours in managing at least 
part of the behaviour that causes ourselves and residents concern. Boston Neighbourhood 
Policing Team are quite happy to provide resilience to assist this effort, at least initially, as 
those who do not remember night time park closure become educated to its potential 
return. 

 
5.14 I would add that in addition to the recorded incidents called in by the public, our teams 

routinely patrol Central park daily, and of course intervene in issues they find whilst there, 
which may not be recorded elsewhere. This will of course continue as part of our daily 
business: we are committed to proactivity rather than being purely reactive. I believe it is 
appreciated however, that my team pay adequate attention to as much of the Borough as it 
can, rather than spending disproportionate amounts of time considering only one issue. 

 

6.0 CONCLUSION 
 
6.1 Members are requested to consider the decision to return to locking of Central Park at 

night, and if agreeing to do so, agree which of the 4 options they wish Officers to 
implement and approve the funding to do so. 
 

 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
To allocate appropriate capital and/or revenue funds and if procuring services, to do so in 
accordance with Contract Procedure rules.   
 
BTAC’s estimated usable reserves in 21/22 is £118,767  
 
 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

The Council is required to meet requirements of the EU Procurement Directive and its own 

Contract Procurement and Procedure Rules - Part 4 (H) of the Constitution. 

Local Council Powers and Duties to provide public space include; Open Spaces Act 1906; Local 

Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976; Public Health Act 1906; Local Government Act 

1972  

The Occupiers Liability Act 1957 section (2) (1) requires an occupier of premises to owe the 

same duty, ‘the common duty of care’, to all his visitors, except in so far as he is free to and does 

extend, restrict, modify or exclude his duty to any visitor or visitors by agreement or otherwise. 

 

CLIMATE CHANGE AND ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS 

None  

 

  

Page 49



 

EQUALITY AND SAFEGUARDING IMPLICATIONS 

The Council is required to comply with the Public Sector Equality Duty. A full equality impact 

analysis will be undertaken at the appropriate time to ensure new equipment will consider the 

needs of all individuals. 

 

OTHER IMPLICATIONS  

None 

 
CONSULTATION 

Consultation on the development of this report has been undertaken with Officers in Finance, 

Operations and Assets as well as Councillor Paul Skinner, Leader Portfolio Holder, and Councillors 

Paul Goodale and Stephen Woodliffe, Chair and Vice Chair of BTAC respectively. 

 

APPENDICES 

None. 

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

Background papers used in the production of this report are listed below: - 

Document title Where the document can be viewed 

Cabinet Papers and 

minutes 2 Dec 2020 

https://moderngov.boston.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=13

0&MId=1706&Ver=4 

Boston Town Area 
Committee – Central 
Park Security – Update 
Report 27 Feb 2019 

https://moderngov.boston.gov.uk/documents/s6261/BTAC%20C

entral%20Park%20Security%20-%20Update%20Report.pdf 

 

CHRONOLOGICAL HISTORY OF THIS REPORT 

A report on this item has not been previously considered by a Council body. 

 

REPORT APPROVAL  

Report author: Christian Allen, Assistant Director - Regulation  

Signed off by: Councillor Paul Skinner, Leader Portfolio Holder 

Approved for publication: Councillor Paul Goodale, Chairman of BTAC 

  

Page 50

https://moderngov.boston.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=130&MId=1706&Ver=4
https://moderngov.boston.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=130&MId=1706&Ver=4
https://moderngov.boston.gov.uk/documents/s6261/BTAC%20Central%20Park%20Security%20-%20Update%20Report.pdf
https://moderngov.boston.gov.uk/documents/s6261/BTAC%20Central%20Park%20Security%20-%20Update%20Report.pdf


FINANCE PROFORMA 

BOSTON BOROUGH COUNCIL 

PROFORMA FOR APPROVAL OF THE RELEASE OF RESOURCES 

(CAPITAL AND REVENUE BUDGETS) 

 

FROM:  Rachel Chatterton  

 

THIS PROFORMA PROVIDES THE FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
IN RESPECT OF THE ATTACHED 

     

REPORT:  Boston Town Area Committee 
REPORT DATE:  20th May 2021 
 

OPTION 1 £ Year 1 £ Year 2 £ Year 3 £ Year 4 £ Year 5 

 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 

Revenue      

Daily locking 16,500 
 

16,830 17,166 17,510 17,860 

Locking and patrolling 
service  

103,017 105,077 107,178 109,322 111,509 
 
 

      

Funding required: See below  Considered 
by:  
BTAC  

Date: 20th 
May 2021 

 

Total capital cost 
 

0    

Revenue cost 
 

Estimated 
£85,866/ 
£536,103 

   

     
 
Financial Services Comments 
  
The table above sets out the estimated ongoing costs of the service/s assuming a 2% increase per annum 
from the security firm.  
 
It is estimated that BTAC has usable reserves of £118,767 for 21.22. In the latest MTFP 21/22 to 25/26 the 
committee has some surplus funds each year in the budget, this is detailed in the table below.  
 

2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 

71,879 88,126 99,807 110,966 122,791 

 
Note that these funds are for all additional activities the committee undertakes. 
 
Risk 
 
An increase in Council Tax for residents of the town.  

Page 51



A risk that the committee does not have surplus funds for events, play areas and other such priority projects 
in the coming years.  
 
Procurement 
 
The council’s procurement rules should be taken into consideration when awarding any such contracts.  
 
Value for Money Efficiency 

 

This FP is valid for 3 months from 

FP date 

If this FP is no longer required please 

advise Finance 

If there are changes to the original report it 

may invalidate this document, it must be 

reviewed by Finance. 

   

 

 

  

Page 52



FINANCE PROFORMA 

BOSTON BOROUGH COUNCIL 

PROFORMA FOR EXECUTIVE APPROVAL OF THE RELEASE OF RESOURCES 

(CAPITAL AND REVENUE BUDGETS) 

 

FROM:  Rachel Chatterton  

 

THIS PROFORMA PROVIDES THE FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
IN RESPECT OF THE ATTACHED 

     

REPORT:  Boston Town Area Committee 
REPORT DATE:  20th May 2021 
 
OPTION 2 £ Year 1 £ Year 2 £ Year 3 £ Year 4 £ Year 5 
 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 

Revenue      
      

Total Revenue Cost      

      

      

 
Funding required:   Considered by:  

BTAC  
Date: 20th 
May 2021 

Total capital cost 
 

    

Revenue cost 
 

  Enter Council or Cabinet 
here 

 

 
Financial Services Comments 
  
The report does not suggest additional costs but there could be costs for training, protective equipment, out 
of hour’s payments to staff. There are 3 BTAC operatives in post. 
 
Risk 
 
Any additional costs as mentioned above shouldn’t significantly impact on the surplus and reserve funds 
held by the committee.  
 
Procurement 
 
Value for Money Efficiency 
 
This FP is valid for 3 months from 

FP date 

If this FP is no longer required please 

advise Finance 

If there are changes to the original report it 

may invalidate this document, it must be 

reviewed by Finance. 

   

  

Page 53



FINANCE PROFORMA 

BOSTON BOROUGH COUNCIL 

PROFORMA FOR EXECUTIVE APPROVAL OF THE RELEASE OF RESOURCES 

(CAPITAL AND REVENUE BUDGETS) 

 

FROM:  Rachel Chatterton  

 

THIS PROFORMA PROVIDES THE FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
IN RESPECT OF THE ATTACHED 

     

REPORT:  Boston Town Area Committee 
REPORT DATE:  20th May 2021 
 
OPTION 3 £ Year 1 £ Year 2 £ Year 3 £ Year 4 £ Year 5 
 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 
Revenue      
      
  

 

    

        
      

Total Revenue Cost      

 
Funding required:   Considered by:  

BTAC  
Date: 20th 
May 2021 

Total capital cost 
 

    

Revenue cost 
 

  Enter Council or Cabinet 
here 

 

 
Financial Services Comments 
Although we don’t have the full capital costs for the installation of the Maglocks on all 5 gates, we would 
see a significant cost in year one with ongoing maintenance costs that the committee should take into 
consideration.  
 
Risk 
Significant installation costs and maintenance 
 
Procurement 
The council’s procurement rules should be adhered to.  
 
 
Value for Money Efficiency 

 

This FP is valid for 3 months from 

FP date 

If this FP is no longer required please 

advise Finance 

If there are changes to the original report it 

may invalidate this document, it must be 

reviewed by Finance. 

   

  
Page 54



FINANCE PROFORMA 

BOSTON BOROUGH COUNCIL 

PROFORMA FOR EXECUTIVE APPROVAL OF THE RELEASE OF RESOURCES 

(CAPITAL AND REVENUE BUDGETS) 

 

FROM:  Rachel Chatterton  

 

THIS PROFORMA PROVIDES THE FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
IN RESPECT OF THE ATTACHED 

     

REPORT:  Boston Town Area Committee 
REPORT DATE:  20th May 2021 
 
OPTION 4 £ Year 1 £ Year 2 £ Year 3 £ Year 4 £ Year 5 
 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 
Revenue      
      
3 additional ASB 
Officers 

127,200 

 

128,700 130,880 134,450 138,100 

      
      

Total Revenue Cost 127,200 128,700 130,880 134,450 138,100 

 
Funding required: £658,690  Considered by:  

BTAC  
Date: 20th 
May 2021 

Total capital cost 
 

    

Revenue cost 
 

£658,690  Enter Council or Cabinet 
here 

 

 
Financial Services Comments 
  
The table above sets out the 5 year cost of employing 3 additional ASB officers (including on costs) this does 
not include training and support costs.  
 
It is estimated that BTAC has usable reserves of £118,767 for 21.22. In the latest MTFP 21/22 to 25/26 the 
committee has some surplus funds each year in the budget, this is detailed in the table below.  
 

2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 

71,879 88,126 99,807 110,966 122,791 

 
Note that these funds are for all additional activities the committee undertakes. 
 
Risk 
 
An increase in Council Tax for residents of the town.  
A risk that the committee does not have surplus funds for events, play areas and other such priority projects 
in the coming years.  
 

Page 55



Procurement 
 
Value for Money Efficiency 

 

This FP is valid for 3 months from 

FP date 

If this FP is no longer required please 

advise Finance 

If there are changes to the original report it 

may invalidate this document, it must be 

reviewed by Finance. 

   

 

Page 56



 
BOSTON TOWN AREA COMMITTEE – WORK PROGRAMME 2020/21 

 

MEETING AGENDA ITEM 
 

LEAD OFFICER / MEMBER / GUEST 
    

7 OCT 2020  Setting Up A Town Council – Requested by Members Representatives from the National and Local 
Association of Local Councils (NALC & LALC) 

    

26 NOV 
2020 

 Police Response to Illegal Encampments – Requested by Members Representatives from Lincolnshire Police / 
Police and Crime Commissioner / MP 

    

16 DEC 
2020 

 Financial Position 

 BTAC Small Grants Scheme 

 Play Area Improvements ‘Wish List’, including an update on Central Park 
and Buoys Projects 

 Draft Annual BTAC Report 

AD - Support Services & Partnerships 
BTAC Grant Administrator  

Operations Manager 
 

Chairman 
    

3 FEB 2021  Task & Finish Group Recommendations  

 Proposed BTAC budget 2021/22 and forecast to 2025/26 

Assistant Director - Regulation  
Section 151 Officer  

   

24 MARCH 
2021 

 School Street Application by Haven High re Marion Road  

 Events Review 2021  

 Christmas in Boston 

Haven High Academy  
Town Centre Manager 

“ 
    

20 MAY 
2021 

 BTAC Small Grant Applications  

 Empowering Healthy Communities 

 Task and Finish Group Recommendations – Costs and Options re 
locking Central Park gates overnight and provision of service to address 
anti-social behaviour 

BTAC Grant Administrator  
Assistant Director - Housing and Wellbeing 

Assistant Director - Regulation  
 

 

    

5 AUGUST 
2021 

 Grant Request - Arranging Community Events Group 

 Open Spaces Improvements ‘Wish List’  

 Public Conveniences – Costs and Options re Charges/Opening Hours  

 Bulky waste collection – consideration of amnesty  

 Setting up a Town Council – following Full Council consideration 
 

Town Centre Services Manager 
Assistant Director – Regulation  
Assistant Director – Operations 

“ 
Chairman 

    

 

Future item: Fenside Ward – Improvements/liaison with Lincolnshire Housing Partnership (LHP)  

P
age 57

A
genda Item

 4



T
his page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 1

REVENUE BUDGET Variance Narrative

£ £ £

OPEN SPACES AND PLAY AREAS 120,080        113,182      6,898                 Employment costs £4,132F, Play Equip Repairs £2,142F, Water Rates £770F, Electricity £510F, Income (£1,550) Adv

ALLOTMENTS RETAINED SUPPORT 1,040            226             814                    Income £564 F, Development Costs £250 F  

ADMINISTRATION 45,960          36,359        9,601                 BTAC Grants programme £9,000 F, Community Shed London Road running costs £601 F

CENTRAL PARK 127,150        127,212      (62)                     Income Kiosk (£1,075) Adv, Electric £558 F, Water £118 F, Birds £337 F

PUBLIC CONVENIENCES 168,870        167,300      1,570                 Income (£9,266) Adv, Water Rates £4,702, Employment costs £1,989 F, Materials £2,965 F

EVENTS 126,730        126,705      25                      Employment Costs £1,434 F, Events Costs & Advertising £17,461, Income (£15,377) Adv

TOWN CENTRE MAINTENANCE OPERATIVES 89,610          102,514      (12,904)             Pension costs (£15,485) Adv, Equipment, Clothing, Materials £2,465 F

OTHER PROJECTS 23,256          -                  23,256              Projects Unallocated in Budget setting - remaining unspent

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 702,696        673,498      29,198              

Less income from BTAC Council Tax levy (702,696)      (702,696)     -                         

(Surplus) / Deficit for the year -                    (29,198)       29,198              

BOSTON TOWN AREA COMMITTEE -  2020/21 Outturn Financial Position

 Original 

Budget 

2020/21 

 Est 

Outturn 

31.03.2021 

 Variance 

(Original less 

Outturn ) 

Page 59



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	B MINUTES
	1 BTAC SMALL GRANT SCHEME
	EXEMPT Table 2 - Small Grants Working Group Recommendations

	2 EMPOWERING HEALTHY COMMUNITIES (MHCLG COMMUNITY CHAMPIONS PROGRAMME)
	Appendix A - Empowering Healthy Communities Member Briefing Presentation (updated 26.02.21)
	Appendix B - Memorandum of Understanding between MHCLG and Boston Borough Council
	Appendix C - Digital Support Proposal

	3 REGULATING AND SAFEGUARDING BOSTON'S ECONOMY TASK AND FINISH GROUP RECOMMENDATIONS IN RELATION TO CENTRAL PARK SECURITY
	4 WORK PROGRAMME - STANDING ITEM
	BTAC Outturn 31 March 21 and Reserve Position


